
  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The January 2017 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District will 
be held will be held on Thursday, January 19, 2017 at 6:00 pm at the Steele Memorial Library, 
101 E. Church St. Elmira, NY 14901.  The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you are 
unable to attend, please inform Mr. Roberts (271-9625), Mrs. Santulli (733-8607), or Mr. Shaw 
(733-8611).   

 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2017-01)   
4.  Treasurer’s report 
 a) Financial report (document 2017-02)  
 b)  Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document 2017-03)  
5.  Correspondence  
6.  President’s report.      
7.  Director’s Report. 

Consent Item: Approval to discard excess/outdated computer equipment 
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees allow for the de-accession of excess and 
outdated computer equipment. 
Consent Item: Approval to close SML and HFL on March 25th 
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the closing of SML and HFL on 
March 25, 2017 in order to support the Twin Tiers Mini Maker Faire cosponsored by 
Corning Community College and being held at the Arnot Mall. 
Consent Item: Approval of Visitation Room Guidelines  
Resolved that the guidelines for use of the Youth Services visitation room be approved as 
submitted.  and observances for 2017 be approved as submitted.  
Consent Item: Approval of CCLD branch closures on June 9, 2017 
Resolved that all CCLD branches be closed on June 9, 2017 in order for staff to 
participate in the joint CCLD/STLS continuing education event to be held at Corning 
Community College.  

8.  Committee reports:   
a)  Executive Committee (Roberts)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2017-04) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2017-05)  

 c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Muldoon) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting  (document #2017-06) 
Consent Item: Approval of Change Order for Restroom Doors 



Resolved that CCLD accept the change order in the amount of $3,619.00 to replace the 
restroom doors at SML on the recommendation of Chemung County Buildings & 
Grounds.  

 d) Personnel Committee (Kappanadze)  
Consent Items: Approval of Personnel Actions (Appendix C).  
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve Personnel actions as submitted. 

9. Call for Executive Session 
10.  Old business     
11.  New business 
12.  Period for public expression  
13.  Adjournment  



(Minutes of the DECEMBER 15, 2016 meeting of the Chemung County Library District 
Board of Trustees. Document #2017-01) 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00pm by President Richard Roberts. Present were Pat 
Silvernail, Ann Hayes, William Wehling, Bonnie Chollet, John Schamel, Marge 
Kappanadze, Phyllis Rogan, Rachel Dworkin, Tim Blandford, Jim Hare, Juan Jones and 
Jared Myers. Excused:  Georgia & Michael Muldoon. Also present were Ron Shaw, the 
Library District’s Director and Joan Santulli, the Library District’s Administrative Assistant.  
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the November 2016 meeting (Document #2016-67) were 
presented for board review. The minutes were approved as corrected by unanimous consent.   
 
Financial  Report. The November 30, 2016 Financial Report (Document #2016-68) was 
presented for board review. By unanimous consent the Financial Report was approved as 
distributed and will be filed for audit.   
 
Report of Unpaid Bills (Document #2016-69). The list includes the final 2016 payment to 
STLS for Data Processing. By unanimous consent, the board authorizes the payment of the 
unpaid bills dated 12/14/16 – General Fund - $44,450.56 and Grant Fund - $3,083.38 as 
distributed in writing.  

 
Correspondence.   Director Shaw reported receipt of several holiday cards from local 
vendors.   
 
President’s Report.  Mr. Roberts stated that the slate of officer for fiscal year 2017 needs to 
be approved.  Mr. Hare moved, seconded by Ms. Chollet to approve the following officers: 
President Will Wehling, Vice-President Marge Kappanadze, Secretary Rachel Dworkin and 
Treasurer Jack Schamel.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
 
Director’s Report.   Mr. Shaw discussed the following: 
Consent Item: Acceptance of Horseheads Foundation Donation. Mr. Hare moved, seconded 
by Mr. Wehling that the CCLD Board of Trustees accepts the annual donation from the 
Public Library Foundation of Chemung County in the amount of $106,453.25. VOTE: 
Unanimously Approved. 
Consent Item: Approval of Hogmanay Fine Forgiveness. Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by 
Mr. Myers that the CCLD Board of Trustees approves the Hogmanay Proposal as submitted 
in writing. Hogmanay will be held December 19-December 30, 2016. VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved.  
Consent Item: Appointment of Selective Insurance as carrier for 2017.  Mr. Schamel moved, 
seconded by Ms. Dworkin that the Board approves the appointment of Selective Insurance 
for property and worker's compensation insurances for fiscal year 2017. VOTE: 
Unanimously Approved. 
Consent Item: Approval of Holidays and Observances for 2017. Ms. Silvernail moved, 
seconded by Ms. Chollet that the Board approve the schedule of holidays and observances 
for 2017 as revised and submitted and approval also be given for the 2017 meeting dates as 
submitted.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
Consent Item: Approval of purchase of AWE Early Literacy Machines. Ms. Dworkin 
moved, seconded by Mr. Jones that the Board approves the request to purchase 4 early 
Literacy Stations as submitted in writing.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 



Mr. Shaw also requested approval of a recent donation from an anonymous donor.  Mr. 
Wehling moved, seconded by Mr. Blandford to accept the $5,000 donation as designated for 
Audiobooks.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
The Director's Report (Appendix A) and the CCLD Staff Reports (Appendix B) for last 
month were submitted in writing to the board.  

Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to 
the board (Document #2016-70). No comments. 

Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting 
was presented in writing to the board (Document #2016-71).  
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee 
meeting was presented in writing to the board (Document #2016-72).  
 
Personnel Committee.  
CONSENT ITEM:  Resolved by Ms. Dworkin, seconded by Mr. Hare that the CCLD Board 
of Trustees approves the Personnel actions as submitted in writing.  VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved. 
 
Old Business. There has been no progress on the information needed for Election 2017. 
 
New Business.  The issue with the Health Insurance carrier changing the terms of the 
Platinum 3 plan and the discussion with union officers about CCLD changing to the Gold 6 
health insurance plan was discussed. Union members have unanimously approved going to 
the new plan.  Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Mr. Schamel that the Library District offer 
the new Gold 6 plan to eligible CCLD employees and that the Health Reimbursement 
Accounts be increased to $2,100 (individual) and $4,200 (all other) per year and the full 
amount be available to staff at the beginning of each year.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
Executive Session. Ms. Kappanadze moved, seconded by Mr. Wehling to move into 
Executive Session to discuss a personnel issue.  Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Mr. Hare 
to come out of Executive Session.  Regarding the Administrative Assistant, Ms. Kappanadze 
moved to approve a raise for 2017 for Joan Santulli in the amount of 1.5% which is 
consistent with the rest of the staff and to renew her contract as is for fiscal year 2017. 
VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
President Roberts stated that he has received a resignation from board member Jim Hare 
who is moving out of District 12, said resignation to be effective 12/31/16.  Mr. Hare 
moved, seconded by Mr. Wehling to appoint Karl Schwesinger as the trustee to represent 
District 12 in fiscal year 2017.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
Public Expression.  None 
 
President Roberts thanked Juan Jones and Jim Hare for their service to the board.  Also as 
the first CCLD board member to “term-limit out”, he thanked Georgia Reynolds for her 
commitment to the board, serving for 3 years as President and for her participation in the 
negotiating teams for successful union contracts.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:20pm. The next regular meeting of the board will be held 
on Thursday, January 19th, 2017 at 6:00pm at the Steele Memorial Library, 101 East 
Church Street, Elmira, New York. 

























Document #2017-04 
 
Report of the January 4th, 2017 meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District:   
 
Attending the meeting from the Executive Committee were Marge Kappanadze, Jack 
Schamel, and Richard Roberts; and Joan Santulli, CCLD management.  Other board 
members in attendance were Pat Silvernail, Jared Myers, Will Wehling, Ann Hayes, Tim 
Blandford, Rachel Dworkin, Pam Larnard and Phyllis Rogan. The meeting opened at 
6pm.   
 
UNPAID BILLS:  Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Mr. Wehling to approve the Unpaid 
Bill lists for the General fund dated 12/30/16 - $17,080.34 and dated 1/4/17 - $19,308.59  
and the Grant Fund dated 12/30/16  - $3,475.54 and dated 1/4/17 - $137.50. VOTE: 
Unanimously Approved. 
 
President Roberts stated that CCLD’s request for changes to the Legislation have 
been processed by Senator O’Mara’s office and will be submitted to the New 
York State Legislature at their January session. 
 
Regarding the bids for the Chiller Project at the Steele Library, Ms. Hayes moved, 
seconded by Mr. Blandford that the Library District accept the low bid of Tri-
County Refrigeration, Inc in the amount of $254,670 and give approval to Project 
Manager LaBella PC to proceed with the notice of award and notice to proceed. 
VOTE:  Unanimously Approved.  
 
It was noted that Pat Silvernail has agreed to continue as liaison with both the 
Friends of CCLD and the Steele Memorial Library Foundation.  Pam Larnard has 
agreed to serve as board liaison with the Friends of the Horseheads Free Library.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:20pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District will be held on Wednesday, February 1st, 2017 at 6pm 
in the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele Memorial Library.   



Document #2017-05 
 
Report of the January 11th, 2017 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District.  
 
Attending the meeting were CCLD board members Jack Schamel, Richard Roberts and Marge 
Kappanadze. Also attending were Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD Administration. The 
meeting opened at 8:00am.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the December 31st, 2016 Final Financial Report to the Committee. The 
Report will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the Unpaid Bills Detail dated 1/10/17 for the General Fund bills totaling 
$19,086.77 and the Grant Fund - $2,974.67. The Unpaid Bills Detail will be forwarded to the full 
CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Mr. Shaw reported that he received a notice that CCLD will be awarded an extra $11,000 in 
State Construction funding for the new Teen Section at the Steele Library.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:05am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, February 8th, 2017 at 8:00am in the Petrie Conference Room of the 
Steele Memorial Library.   



Document #2017-06  
 
Report of the January 4th, 2017 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District 
 
The meeting opened at 5:30pm. Present were Mr. Muldoon, Ms. Hayes, Mr. Blandford and Mr. Roberts. 
Also attending was Joan Santulli, CCLD Management.   
 
The Committee received reports on the following: 
 
Bathroom Project at the Steele Library. The downstairs restrooms are now open to the public and renovations 
have started on the upstairs restrooms. No new timeline for completion of the project has been received to 
date.  
 
Teen Section.  Mr. Muldoon stated that he is ready to start preparing the RFP’s for the project. He will get 
with Director Shaw to get the name of the Teen Section Specialist who can assist with this. 
 
Chiller Project at Steele.  LaBella Associates, D.P.C.  held the bid opening on December 29, 2016.  Five 
companies submitted bids with the lowest bid coming from Tri-County Refrigeration, Inc. in the amount of 
$254,670 for the base bid and alternate #1 (extended 10 year warranty). LaBella recommends awarding the 
bid to Tri-County. The Committee will recommend that the CCLD board accept this recommendation. 
 
 
No other building issues were reported.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:39pm.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, February 1st, 
2017 at 5:30pm in the Petrie Conference Room at the Steele Memorial Library. 
 



 
To: C
 
From:
 
Date: 
 
Subjec
 
 
Prom
N/A 
 
End o
 
New H
 
Resig
Leagh
 
Term
 
 
Disab
N/A 
 
Step I
Emma
 
 
 

CLD Board 

: Ronald W. 

January 11, 

ct: Approval

motions: 

of Probation

Hires: 

nations: 
hanna Miller

minations: 

bility Leave 

Increases: 
a Howard- L

of Trustees 

Shaw, Direc

2017 

l of Personn

nary Period

r- effective J

Library Clerk

 

ctor 

el Actions 

d- Permanen

anuary 19. 

k to Step 4 

 

nt Appointm

 
 
 
The Chemun
neighborhoo
Bookmobile,
West Elmira,
www.ccld.lib

ment 

ng County Librar
od libraries in Big
, Elmira, Horsehe
, and on the web
.ny.us 

ry District, with 
g Flats, the 
eads, Van Etten, 
 at 

 



December 31, 2016 100%

total Open Total Total **Percentage

Gift 2016 spent Invoices spent & Balance spent this spent this

Department Funds budget this year subm to Office on order LEFT TO SPEND month year

12/31/2016 not yet paid includes Gift funds

Steele Memorial Library Col.1+Col.2-Col.5

Children's (JUV) 1,245$            28,990$        28,992$     28,992$     1,243$                    3,549$            96%

      Juv eBooks CBA Fund- now NF 3,500$          2,753$       2,753$       747$                       2,753$            79%

Young Adult 6,750$          5,026$       5,026$       1,724$                    946$               74%

      YA eBooks CBA Fund 3,500$          1,897$       1,897$       1,603$                    903$               54%

Graphic Novels 3,000$          2,478$       2,478$       522$                       799$               83%

Reference - CBA Grant 10,000$        9,637$       9,637$       363$                       2,638$            96%

   Electronic Reference -CBA Grant 5,000$          8,765$       8,765$       (3,765)$                   175%

   Electronic Reference - Gen. Fund 15,500$        15,500$     15,500$     -$                            739$               100%

Periodicals 134$               9,000$          6,596$       6,596$       2,538$                    169$               72%

   Zinio - CBA Grant + $2K Gen Fund 2,000$            18,900$        20,387$     20,387$     513$                       98%

Microforms/Genealogy 8,689$            2,000$          2,789$       2,789$       7,900$                    240$               26%

Fiction 4,737$            35,200$        35,549$     35,549$     4,388$                    7,470$            89%

    FIC eBooks CBA Fund 12,000$        8,952$       8,952$       3,048$                    1,403$            75%

AV-DownLoadable Audio -Gen. 8,500$          8,523$       8,523$       (23)$                        6,731$            100%

Adult Non-Fiction-General Fund 2,703$            1,000$          770$          770$          2,933$                    92$                 21%

         Non-FIC eBooks CBA Fund 1,500$          1,500$       1,500$       -$                            100%

         Non-Fiction-CBA Fund 10,000$        10,006$     10,006$     (6)$                          2,814$            100%

Audio video/music/dvd/blue ray - Gen. 11,439$          51,000$        54,605$     54,605$     7,834$                    6,966$            87%

          Audiobooks 5,000$            -$               -$               0%

         Non-Fic Educ DVD - CBA Fund 3,000$          1,753$       1,753$       1,247$                    358$               58%

 

Subtotal for Steele 35,946$          228,340$      226,478$   -$                     226,478$   32,808$                  38,569$          86%

Big Flats Library 1,796$            20,961$        21,765$     21,765$     992$                       2,874$            96%

Bookmobile 1,562$            6,504$          6,844$       6,844$       1,222$                    619$               85%

West Elmira Library              1,108$            20,961$        21,412$     21,412$     657$                       3,913$            97%

Horseheads Free Library-Adult 2,254$            18,300$        18,516$     18,516$     2,038$                    1,501$            90%

        HFL- AV 436$               8,000            8,044$       8,044$       392$                       775$               95%

        HFL - Books Plus 862$               -$                  681$          681$          181$                       79%

        HFL - Juvenile 75$                 15,724$        15,653$     15,653$     146$                       1,599$            99%

VanEtten Library 133$               5,202$          5,271$       5,271$       64$                         468$               99%

 

Subtotal for other libraries 8,224$            95,652$        98,186$     -$                     98,186$     5,690$                    11,748$          95%

GRAND TOTALS 44,170$          323,992$      324,664$   -$                     324,664$   43,498$                  50,317$          88%

9/30/2016 **$4,000 moved from Zinio to NF CBA / Elec Ref overspent per Ron - extra funds available

       Library Materials Expenditure Report for 2016

through 2016

E-Books purchased from Cost Share NOT included - STLS will track



 

 

Steele Library’s Early Literacy Room 

 

 
This room, funded by the Friends of CCLD, is designed for families with children ages 

Infant through Kindergarten ages. It is also a space for supervised visits for families 

with children up to age 8. The room is intended for adults to engage with their young 

children, please use other areas of the library for cell phone use or adult conversations. 

Story times for ages under 2 are also held in here and Steele Youth Staff has the right to 

use the room for other programming needs. The room can also be requested by      

breastfeeding mothers, or for children having a rough time in the larger library area. 

Staff has the right to regulate room capacity.   

 

RULES 

 Children must be supervised by a responsible adult caregiver at all times. 

 Please model appropriate library behavior—Indoor voices, no profanity, no 

running or throwing or misusing toys. Sharing and cleaning up are           

expected.  Wipes will be kept on the windowsill for parents to sanitize 

books or toys that children have had in their mouths.  

 All toys, cds and books must stay in the room. 

 No Food, No Diaper Changing (Restrooms on the First Floor have diaper 

changing tables.) 

 Anything visible is for your enjoyment, please do not open cupboards.  

 If your child is ill, please wait until your child is not contagious to visit the 

room.  




	Agenda 2017-1
	Document 2017-1
	Document 2017-2
	Document 2017-3
	Document 2017-4
	Document 2017-5
	Document 2017-6
	Appendix C Personnel Actions January 2017
	Book Expense Report 12-31-16
	Room Rules
	Computer Discard List

